ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 15, 2001
8:03 a. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative John Coghill, Chair
Representati ve Jeannette Janes
Representati ve Hugh Fate
Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Harry Crawford
Representati ve Joe Hayes

VEMBERS ABSENT
Representative Gary Stevens
COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE BI LL NO. 149
"An Act relating to correctional facility space and to
authorizing the Departnent of Corrections to enter into an
agreenent to lease facilities for the confinenent and care of
prisoners within the Kenai Peninsula Borough."

- HEARD AND HELD
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

Departnent of Adm nistration

Ji m Duncan, Conm ssi oner

- CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

Al aska Public Ofices Comm ssion

Mar k Handl ey, Comm ssi oner

- CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

Al aska Human Ri ghts Comm ssi on

Judge Roy Madsen, Commi ssioner

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 15, 2001



- CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

PREVI QUS ACTI ON

BILL: HB 149
SHORT TI TLE: PRI VATE PRI SON | N KENAI
SPONSCOR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) CHENAULT

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action
02/ 26/ 01 0437 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
02/ 26/ 01 0437 (H STA, FIN
02/ 26/ 01 0437 (H REFERRED TO STATE AFFAI RS
03/13/01 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
03/13/01 (H Heard & Held
M NUTE( STA)
03/ 15/ 01 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE M KE CHENAULT

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Buil ding, Room 432

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 149.

ROY d LBERTSON, WMayor

City of Delta Junction

P. O Box 229

Del ta Junction, Al aska 99737

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 149.

PETE HALGREN, Director

Depart ment of Econom c Devel opnent

City of Delta Junction

P. O Box 229

Del ta Junction, Al aska 99737

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 149.

SUSAN KEMP, City Council Menber

City of Delta Junction

P. 0. Box 229

Delta Junction, Al aska 99737

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 149.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 15, 2001



NAT GOOD, City Council Menber

City of Delta Junction

P. O Box 229

Del ta Junction, Al aska 99737

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 149.

MARGOT KNUTH, Assistant Attorney General
O fice of the Conm ssi oner

Departnent of Corrections

431 North Franklin Street, Suite 203
Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 149.

Rl CHARD VAN HATTEN, Presi dent

Correctional Oficers Bargaining Unit

Publ i c Saf ety Enpl oyees Associ ation

840 Set Net Drive

Kenai, Al aska 99611

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to a privately
operated prison, as authorized by HB 149.

KEVI N WYATT

40635 Bel nap Drive

Honer, Al aska 99603

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to a privately
operated prison, as authorized by HB 149.

JI M DUNCAN, Comm ssi oner Appointee

Departnent of Adm nistration

P. O Box 110200

Juneau, Al aska 99811-0200

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the position of
conmmi ssi oner.

HARCLD HEI NZE

1336 Staubbach Circle

Anchor age, Al aska 99508

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Asked questions of comr ssioner appointee,
Department of Adm nistration.

MARK HANDLEY, Appoi ntee

Al aska Public O fices Comm ssion

630 Di xon Street

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Al aska Public
O fices Conmi ssion.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 15, 2001



JUDGE ROY MADSEN, Appointee

Al aska Human Ri ghts Conmmi ssi on

P. 0. Box 726

Kodi ak, Al aska 99615

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Al aska Human
Ri ghts Conm ssi on.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-22, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR JOHN COGHI LL called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:03 a.m Conmittee nenbers
present at the call to order were Representatives Coghill,
Janmes, Fate, WIlson, Crawford, and Hayes. Representati ve
St evens was absent.

HB 149- PRI VATE PRI SON | N KENAI

CHAI R COGHI LL announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 149, "An Act relating to correctional facility
space and to authorizing the Departnent of Corrections to enter
into an agreenent to lease facilities for the confinenment and
care of prisoners within the Kenai Peninsula Borough.™

Number 0165

REPRESENTATI VE M KE CHENAULT, Alaska State Legislature, cane
forward as sponsor of HB 149.

CHAIR COGHI LL called commttee nenbers' attention to the fiscal
note for HB 149 that had been di stri buted.

Nunber 0274

ROY G LBERTSON, Mayor, City of Delta Junction, testified by
t el econf erence. He recalled that when he joined the city
council in 1998, there was an existing agreenment with Allvest,

Inc., to entertain a prison at Fort Geely. About three nonths
|l ater, a public vote indicated that the people of Delta Junction
wanted to see Fort Geely re-used and that a prison would be a
possi bl e use.

MR. G LBERTSON noted that at that point, Allvest had been ready

to file suit against the city. He and two other council nen net
several tines wth Allvest's attorneys and worked out a

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 15, 2001



settl enent agreenent, which he thought was a very good one for
Delta Junction. They brought the proposed agreenent to the city
council, which at a public neeting on March 30 approved it and
passed Ordi nance 9904 expressing the city's agreenent and intent
to nmove forward with the prison project.

MR. G LBERTSON went on to say that the public was not

unaninously in favor of the idea. A referendum was brought
against the city council action. That pronpted a lawsuit from
Allvest to the city clerk. The city council passed O dinance

2002 that suspended Odinance 9904, "and that brought the
| awsuit directly to the city and we have been trying to work
through that ever since then," he said. He noted that the city
council simultaneously has been working with the mlitary.
"Basically that's where we are right now," he said. "W have a
| awsuit against the city, the property isn't available, we
haven't had nuch interaction by the State of Alaska and
absolutely no financial help on this whatsoever...."

Nunmber 0615

CHAIR COGHI LL asked M. G lberton if he objected to HB 149 or
thought it would cause problens for Delta Junction in relation
to the lawsuit.

MR. G LBERTSON said HB 149 woul d repeal HB 53, which gives Delta
Junction authority to build a prison. "It also gives Kenai
sonething that they didn't give Delta, the ability to build a
prison off [the Fort Geely] site," he said. "Yes, it would
hurt Delta Junction, because right now there's no certainty that
...[a prison] is comng here." Since the mlitary has w thheld
the use of Fort Geely, the only way there could be a prison
built in Delta Junction would be for the legislature to change
HB 53 to allow the prison to be built on another site.

Number 0747

PETE HALGREN, Director, Departnent of Econom c Devel opnent, City
of Delta Junction, testified by teleconference. Since he
assuned the job in Septenber 1999, his job has been to nove
forward with the re-use of the surplus area of Fort Geely,
i ncluding construction of the prison authorized by HB 53. The
city has wundertaken a financial feasibility study on wusing
existing buildings at Fort Geely, as anticipated by HB 53.
Al though the study is still in draft form the |atest revision
(dated February 8, 2001) indicates that using those buildings
for the prison is financially unfeasible.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 15, 2001



MR. HALGREN said, "I hate to use terns |ike 'jerked around,' but

that's sort of the feeling |I've gotten. |"ve been pulling ny
hair out." In Septenber 1999, after the lawsuit started, the
city was still being told by the mlitary that a prison and a

National Mssile Defense (NVD) installation could co-exist at
Fort Geely. By Decenber of 1999, city officials "were having
strong suspicions that that mght not be true." he said. In
March of 2000, the city was awarded funding from the Departnent
of Defense for a financial feasibility study to | ook at both the
proposed prison footprint (which includes the buildings) and raw
| and on Fort Greely. In April of 2000, funding for studying use
of the footprint was "deferred" by the Departnment of Defense.
That departnment stopped any funding for any studies using the
existing facilities at Fort Geely in May 2000. The city since
has |l earned that in March of 2000, the NWD fol ks decided to use
the prison footprint buildings. That information cane in
testinmony in the lawsuit from a representative of the United
States Arnmy Corps of Engineers in Al aska. Everybody is waiting
for the President to nake a decision [about the |ocation of NWVD
facilities, potentially in Al aska], M. Halgren said.

CHAI R COGHI LL asked if the HB 53 prison plan "just wouldn't work
in Delta because of the existing building issue. Is that true?”

MR. HALGREN replied, "That's what our study indicates."”

CHAIR COGHI LL explained that HB 159 is taking the |anguage [ of
HB 53] and noving it to Kenai under a little different scenario.
He asked M. Halgren, "Do you object to HB 149 as it 1is
witten"?

MR. HALGREN replied, "HB 149 as witten ... takes away Delta's
opportunity to nove forward on a prison."

CHAIR COCGHI LL observed that it seens like the Fort Geely site
is not going to work, and for the conmttee to nmake a clear
policy decision, it needs to know if Delta Junction needs a
separate statutory provision for a prison in Delta.

MR. HALGREN pointed out that HB 53 requires Delta Junction to

re-use existing buildings on Fort Geely. It does not allow
them to look into putting a prison on raw |and. “You're
absolutely correct,”™ he told Chair Coghill. "House Bill 53

needs to change."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 15, 2001



CHAIR COGHI LL explained that the commttee is |ooking at the
Kenai issue separately from the Delta issue, knowing full well
that the Delta issue would require another statutory fix. So HB
149 is not neant to disparage Delta so nmuch as to nove along

wi th prison-building. "Do you see it that way?" he asked M
Hal gr en.
MR. HALGREN replied, "I do see it that way, however, Delta has a

strong feeling that there should be a level playing field.
House Bill 149 is going to offer Kenai the opportunity to build
a prison on raw land, an option that Delta Junction has not been
gi ven, he pointed out.

Number 1146

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON requested clarification of who was
providing the land for the prison in Kenai.

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT explained that the deal for the land in

Kenai has not yet been nmade. The borough has passed a
resol ution supporting efforts to reach an agreenent to use Kena
Native Association |and. He said he did not know the
particul ars about the negotiations.

REPRESENTATIVE W LSON said, "W aren't doi ng anyt hi ng
| egislatively to provide |land down there. | guess what |'m
getting at is that the playing field s kind of |I|evel. They

coul d have the sanme things down there, couldn't they?"

CHAIR COGHI LL noted that Delta Junction had becone entangled in
a lawsuit and that "there were other issues.™

Number 1227

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES said HB 53 was drafted in a way that did
not give Delta Junction the option to do anything other than re-

use existing facilities. For them to have the sane
opportunities that are being given to Kenai by HB 149, there
woul d have to be another piece of legislation. "Quite frankly,

| woul dn't oppose that,"” she said.

CHAI R COGHI LL said he agreed and thinks that is an issue. House
Bill 149 is not intended to give one conmmunity preference over
another; "it's just that Kenai has done sonme of the honmework
that Delta was never afforded the opportunity to do," he said.
"I think Pete Hal gren nmakes a good point: it hurts.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 15, 2001



Nunber 1288

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES expressed curiosity about why the Kenai
proposal did not go through a statew de process. "Did the rest
of the state have the opportunity to propose sonmething for a
private prison?" he asked.

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT said he did not know.

CHAIR COGHI LL said he would like to et those in Delta Junction
finish their testinony before going into conmttee discussion.

Number 1263

SUSAN KEMP, City Council Menber, City of Delta Junction

testified by teleconference. She commented that she felt HB 149
is going to elimnate Delta Junction's chances to be able to
proceed with sonething on which they have been working for a
long tine. As she understands HB 149, it elimnates HB 53. If
this opportunity is afforded to Kenai, she would like to see the
state step in and give Delta Junction sonme help in negotiating a
settlenent in the |awsuit. "We sort of feel like we've been
hung out here to dry, and we're not in a position to be able to
come up with a large sum of noney to settle this lawsuit,"” she
sai d. "In fact, we've never been in a position where we could
even afford to be in a lawsuit. W'd certainly like to see sone
consideration given for getting sone kind of a settlenent."”

Nunber 1460

NAT GOOD, City Council Menber, Gty of Delta Junction, testified
by tel econference. He reiterated that if HB 149 is going to
elimnate HB 53, then he believes the state needs to clear all
issues remaining on HB 53, including Delta Junction's |awsuit.
It is a result of HB 53 as are sone other problens the City of
Delta Junction now has. "W have done everything we can," he
sai d.

MR. GOOD conti nued:

BRAC [the Departnment of Defense Base Realignnent and
Cl osure Commi ssion] has not allowed us ... to have any
bui | di ngs what soever out there [at Fort Geely]. | f
we took any building on post and attenpted [to use] it
in any way, BRAC rules nean that if they chose to take
the buildings back, we need to restore the buildings
to their original condition. So for us to do anything

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 15, 2001



with any buildings out there would cause serious
potential problens for us. In order to do anything
with bonding, we ... [have] to get title to the |and,
so it's just inpossible to do any construction until
we have title to the land, and that sinply hasn't been
possi ble. Bonding sinply can't be done.

Number 1540

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES said she thought the |egislature had done
everything it could do to nmake the HB 53 prison project work.

It looks to her, as an outsider, "that an awful [|ot of vyour
trauma that you're having there is because of a conflict within
your community," she observed. "lIs that correct or not?"

Number 1581

MR. GOOD acknow edged that there has been a conflict wthin the
comunity. However, the city council has continued forward with
work on HB 53, doing what it could with Fort Geely, "which, as
it turned out, has been a very educational experience for us,"
he said. "There hasn't been very nmuch that we in reality could
do."

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked if in the unlikely event that the
Fort Geely site becane available for prison "is there still
sonet hi ng hol di ng you up?”

MR. GOOD said Delta Junction needs to have actual ownership of
any building or land in order to issue bonds to construct
anything there. "Owmership is the real roadblock here," he
sai d.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES noted that she had worked intently on HB
53, and recalled that one of the reasons the Fort Geely site
was chosen was because it had buildings that could be used,
t hereby saving noney. "Are you saying that that is not a
possibility any nore?" she asked.

MR. GOOD explained that it has turned out to be inpossible for
Delta Junction to get the Fort Greely buildings. The whole BRAC
process has been devel oping over the years during which the city

has been involved with it. "At this point, can we do anything
wi th anything out there? | have to answer no," he said.
REPRESENTATI VE JAMES said, "I honestly in nmy heart believe

that we owe you sonething, not what you' re asking for, but sone

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 15, 2001



provision to be able to get whole on this if you can. But a |ot
of the problens that you ve had are not necessarily our fault."”
From her perspective, she said, it appears that conflict in the
community has been a conplicating factor, notw thstanding the
probl em of being unable to get the title to the facility. " f
we were to pass a piece of legislation which ... gave you the
sanme authorization you had before, but did not require you to
put [the prison] on Fort Geely, what would you do?" she asked.

Nunber 1770

MR. HALGREN replied, "W could nove forward at this point to
finish up our financial feasibility study. The city council met

|last week and authorized ...[use of] limted funds to
investigate the financial feasibility of a raw land prison in
the Delta area .... If we were off Fort Geely, we would not
have any of the BRAC transfer problems ... [and] it would turn

out to be a pure financial feasibility question.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked, "But that doesn't give you any | and
to do it on, does it?"

MR. HALGREN replied, "No it doesn't, but land in the Delta area
is dirt cheap."” [Laughter.] "W have been |ooking at |and for
a new areawide landfill, and land is running approximtely
$1,000 an acre or |ess.

Number 1864

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON recalled that the Delta prison project did
not go out for statewide bid because it appeared that the
mlitary base at Fort Geely was going to be closed, and the
prison project was a way for the state to help Delta Junction
of fset the consequent econom c devastation. She asked M.
Hal gren the status of the mlitary there now.

MR. HALGREN said the official status of the mlitary is that
Fort Greely is continuing its final downsizing to fewer than 100
people, including both mlitary and civilians, by July 2001.
The econony in the area is in "a wrld of hurt.”

Number 1927
REPRESENTATI VE FATE asked if in all the discussion with Al vest

concerning the lawsuit, had there been any talk about another
site.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- March 15, 2001



MR HALGREN said that in the course of the settlenent
di scussions last year, there had been sone talk about an off-

base site. However, those discussions ended in June when a
letter from Senator Jerry Ward was received by Delta Junction's
fundi ng agency. The letter had said, "A plan to build a new
prison on an alternative site wll require the approval of the
Al aska | egislature as well as the governor. | can assure you
that such approval will not be forthcomng."

Nunber 1998

CHAIR COGHI LL observed that there appears to be need for a
"statutory fix," but didn't know if that was gernmane to HB 149
"The only connection is ... House Bill 53, and at this point, HB
53 is not workable in Delta."

Nunber 2017
REPRESENTATI VE JAMES sai d:
House Bill 53 is not workable as it is currently

witten. This piece of legislation [HB 149] does away
wth HB 53. And I'mvery in favor of Kenai being able

to go forward with this, but | think we do owe
sonething to Delta Junction, and | think that maybe we
ought to give them sone nore opportunities ... There's

pl enty of roomfor nore than one prison.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES voiced concern that building a prison may
not be possible in Delta Junction because of conflict within
that community. However, she thought Delta Junction should be
given the opportunity to try if those there want to do so. The
comunity has a budget of about $150,000 a year, "and they've

been spending noney up the ying-yang, and ... they're in a
situation to which we helped to contribute.” She said she is
eager to nove HB 149 forward but feels "like we would be dunping
them [Delta Junction] if we don't make sonme provision in this
bill to allow them to do sonething that they can't currently do
to get thenselves out of this ... problemthat they have.” She
said she would Ilike to get sone |I|egal advice about the

| egi slature's responsibility and how the |egislature could help
Delta Junction w thout keeping Kenai from going ahead.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES said, "I think it's very unfortunate

for the senator from this area [Kenai] to nmake such damming
coments to people when he's only one vote out of 60, and |I'm
not pleased with that at all..." But, she continued, she did

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 15, 2001



not want that to reflect badly upon the Kenai f ol ks’
application, which she thinks is a good one; she is very
inpressed with the participation of the Native comunity in
Kenai, and she thinks it provides the opportunity for cultural
input into the facility that is going to be good for the state.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES cl osed by saying she thinks the |egislature
still owes sonmething to Delta Junction and needs to figure out
what that is.

Number 2230

CHAIR COGHILL agreed and said he would be willing to work on
that. He then returned attention to the question Representative
Hayes had raised earlier.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES said he wondered why the proposal for a
private prison had not gone through a statew de selection
process.

MARGOT KNUTH, Assistant Attorney Ceneral, Ofice of the
Comm ssi oner, Departnent of Corrections, explained that HB 53

was site-specific. It said the prison had to use the existing
facilities at Fort Geely. House Bill 149 also is site-
specific. It says the prison would be in Kenai. Theoretically

one could do a statewide request for proposals and conpare
proposals from all of the interested conmunities, but that is
possible only if there is authority granted to do so, and that
authority cones fromthe | egislature.

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT said he did not think there was anything
to keep any other area from coming to the legislature with a

pr oposal . He called it "forward thinking" that Kenai cane
forward and said, "W see we have a problem we feel that we can
fill the need.” That was part of the reason he introduced HB
149.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES commended Kenai for that, but said he had a
problemwith the letter sent by the senator from Kenai.

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT enphasi zed that there is interest in the
Kenai area not only in bringing Al aska prisoners honme, but also
keepi ng Al askans wor ki ng.

CHAIR COGHI LL noted that both Kenai and Delta had put a |ot of

work into their proposals, and that he wanted to avoid pitting
one comruni ty agai nst anot her.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 15, 2001



Number 2449

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES spoke of the serious need for corrections
space. Part of problemis that nobody wants to have a prison in
his or her back vyard. She says she thinks a conmmunity that
wants to build a prison should be given every opportunity to do
so.

CHAI R COGHI LL summari zed that the conmttee's policy call on HB
149 is to allow Kenai to go forward, but not to cut off Delta

Junction. "If we're going to end up doing that, | want to nmake
sure that we can hold them [Delta Junction] harmess to the
point where they can cone up wth another proposal, so I'm

interested in | anguage to that effect,"” he said.
REPRESENTATI VE JAMES agr eed.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE said he was also interested in getting the
| egal advice that Representative Janes had suggest ed.

Nunmber 2586

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON suggested additional research on the
increased mlitary activity that may be coming into the Delta
Junction area.

Number 2660

RI CHARD VAN HATTEN, President, Correctional Oficers Bargaining
Unit, Public Safety Enployees Association, who is enployed as a
correctional officer at WIldwod Correctional Center, cane
forward to testify. He said there is a small and grow ng group
of people on the Kenai Peninsula who do not wish to have a
private prison. There also are sonme people who do not want the
Kenai Borough to assume an $80 mllion to $120 mllion revenue
bond.

MR. VAN HATTEN said he objects to private prisons in genera
because of "the danger that has been denonstrated nationw de."
He said private prisons have a 40 percent rate of staff
turnover, and that prisons need experienced staff. A recent
five-year study in California showed that there was a 20 percent
hi gher escape rate from private prisons than from state-operated
ones. There is a 66 percent greater incidence of prisoner-to-
prisoner violence and a 50 percent greater incidence of
prisoner-to-staff violence in private prisons, he said. Ther e

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- March 15, 2001



is a resolution now before Congress that would elimnate any
federal use of private prison facilities. That bill also
disqualifies from federal grants anyone who contracts for
private housing of prisoners. He naned six states that he said
are elimnating either existing or future contracts with private
prisons and are "building state facilities as quickly as they
can."

MR. VAN HATTEN said he believes the Al aska Departnent of

Corrections "can do it better than anybody else, and ... can
also do it less expensively than the private prisons wll cost
us." He said he is working with others in the Kenai borough

that are opposed to the private prison project.

MR. VAN HATTEN clarified that he was testifying as a private
citizen and not as a representative of the Departnent of
Corrections.

Nunmber 2896

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked M. Van Hatten if he knew anything
about the track record of Cornell Corrections, Inc., as a
private prison operator.

MR. VAN HATTEN said the figures he provided are an average of
all private prison operators, but that he could separate out the
figures for Cornell.

CHAIR COGHI LL said he thought that was a question for the Kena
Peni nsul a Borough, which had scrutinized proposals from four
different private prison operators.

Nunmber 2966

CHAIR COGHI LL then said that he sees the question of "how to
hel p Delta get de-tangled” as a primary issue, but does not know
the answer to that.

TAPE 01-22, SIDE B

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES said he thought there was sone | anguage in
HB 149 that mght put the state at sonme financial risk, and he
wondered why the language in HB 149 is not the sane as it had
been in HB 53.

CHAIR COGHILL referred to question to Representative Chenault,
who asked that it be re-stated.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 15, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE HAYES said he was curious why the |anguage in HB
149 is different from the |anguage used in authorizing the
Anchorage jail project. H s concern was that those changes
m ght cause the state financial difficulty if the project group
were to pull out.

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT said he was unable to answer that
questi on.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES volunteered that the ternms and agreenents
for the Anchorage jail were not generic ones, but had been
negoti ated specific to the project there. She recalled a great
deal of negotiation about it when HB 53 was being passed. She
was not involved in those negotiations, but thinks that may be
why there is a difference.

CHAIR COGHI LL observed that to answer Representative Hayes
gquestion would require looking into the history of HB 53, which
i ncluded both the Anchorage jail and the Delta Junction prison
proj ects.

Nunber 2862

KEVI N WYATT, of Honer, testified by tel econference. He said it
was interesting to hear all the conflicts swirling around the
Delta Junction question. He said the only point of contention
on the Kenai Peninsula "is not that we don't want a prison in
our back yard; it's not that we don't think the space is needed
or anything like that. The only point of contention ... is that
this is going to be run by a private entity. That's when the
di scussion gets interesting and vigorous, to say the |least."

MR. WYATT  conti nued, "l t hi nk t he i ncarceration and
rehabilitation of people who break the law is a very legitimte
function and responsibility of the State of Alaska, and there is
no reason why the state itself shouldn't build and run this

prison.” He said he would be "all in favor of it wherever it
is,”" and that the site on the Kenai Peninsula is perfect. "The
fly in the ointnment is the private versus public [issue],” he
reiterated. "This is a function of public governnment, and

that's the point I want to nmake."
Number 2780

CHAI R COGHI LL observed that there were | egal questions remaining
and that the commttee needed to dig into the history of HB 53.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 15, 2001



He announced his intention to appoint a subconmttee to |ook
into those issues, stating that he wanted to let the Kenai
prison project proceed but also wanted to take care of Delta
Junction. There being no other people who wi shed to testify, he
cl osed public conmment on HB 149.

CHAIR COGH LL asked Representative James to chair t he
subconm ttee and Representatives Hayes and Fate to join her in
serving on it. The commttee was asked to report back to the
full commttee on March 20.

CHAIR COGHI LL declared a brief at-ease at 9:00 a.m He call ed
the neeting back to order at 9:01 a.m

CHAIR COGHI LL announced that he had scheduled one hour for
further discussion of HB 149, to begin at 9 a.m Tuesday, March
20. He said it was his intention to nobve the bill from
commttee then.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES issued an open invitation to anyone who

wi shed to attend the subcommittee neeting. [HB 149 was HEARD
AND HELD. ]

Number 2527

CHAIR COGHI LL declared an at-ease beginning at 9:03 a.m He
called the neeting back to order at 9:10 a.m

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS5

Departnent of Adm nistration

CHAIR COGHI LL announced that the commttee would consider the
appointnent of Jim Duncan as Conm ssi oner, Departnent  of
Adm ni stration.

Nunber 2508
JIM DUNCAN, Comm ssi oner Appoi nt ee, Depart nent of
Adm nistration, joined the committee at the table. He noted

that commttee nenbers had copies of his resume detailing past
experience. He quickly reviewed his nost recent work history in
the Departnment of Admnistration, which he joined in February
1999 as a special assistant whose main duties were to oversee
the negotiation of |abor contracts with 12 public enployee
unions. In July 2000, he was appoi nted deputy comr ssioner with

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- March 15, 2001



responsibility for overseeing several divisions wthin the
depart nment. At the end of August 2000, he was appointed
conmmi ssi oner.

MR. DUNCAN recalled that in conmttee neetings earlier in the
session, he had given an overview of the Departnent of
Adm nistration and the major initiatives underway at this tine.
He said he thinks his philosophy is clear that the Departnent of
Adm nistration needs to fulfill the duties and the obligations
required by statute in the nost efficient and effective way
possi bl e. He said his goal is to ensure that is done and to
also ensure that the departnment is responsive to those it
serves. That includes state agencies with which it interacts
and, of course, consuners, through a variety of prograns that
the departnent delivers. He said he thought the departnent was
well on its way to doing that, and volunteered to answer any
guestions the conmttee m ght have.

Nunmber 2406

CHAIR COGH LL thanked M. Duncan for his years of public
service, previously as a nenber of the legislature and now in
the adm nistration. He asked his perspective on the novenent of

policy.

MR. DUNCAN said it had been a very interesting |I|earning
experience for him After 12 years in the House and another 12
years in the Senate, he understood the Ilegislative branch of
governnment and the |egislative process pretty well. He thought
he al so understood the executive side of governnent pretty well,
but he learned quickly that there is a whole new approach to
delivering prograns and services when one is charged wth
responsibility of overseeing a nunber of prograns and services

and divi si ons. It had given himnot only a broader but a whole
different perspective on how to approach issues and deal wth
probl ens, he said. "I guess if | had any recomendation to a
| egislator, it would be [to] spend sone tine in the executive
branch al so because it broadens your perspective, gives you a
whole different ... background and feeling for what needs to be
done, and really is beneficial. It's been a challenge for ne,”
he sai d.

Nunber 2282

CHAIR COGH LL asked M. Duncan what his vision is for the
Departnent of Adm nistration.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 15, 2001



MR. DUNCAN said he did not see it as his role to shake the
foundati ons of the departnment or of state government. He thinks
his role is to ensure that the departnent effectively and
efficiently delivers the prograns and services it is required to
deliver, and to continue to explore ways to deliver those nore
efficiently and nore effectively.

Nunmber 2173

HAROLD HEI NZE, of Anchorage, testified by teleconference. He
said he would like to understand M. Duncan's views related to
Alaska hire and contracting wth Al aska conpanies for state-
funded work related to North Slope gas devel opnent. He said he
is past president of Arco Al aska and served as comm ssioner of
natural resources in the H ckel admnistration, so has a good
understanding of the broad public policy responsibilities of a

comm ssioner as well as the inportance of the confirmation
responsibility of the |egislature. He is a self-enployed
consultant and in Novenber 2000 responded to a request for
pr oposal issued by the Alaska Ql and Gas Conservation
Comm ssion (AOGCC), which is part of the Departnent of
Adm ni stration. The proposal was the |low bid, and despite his
being qualified and responsive, the wrk was awarded to a
Cal i fornian. It seens to him that the state would want to

denonstrate to the private sector positive rather than negative
exanples of its expectations on Al aska hire. The Departnment of
Adm nistration provides the |eadership throughout the state
government on issues related to hiring and contracting. He
asked the commttee to give M. Duncan a chance on the record to
express his views regarding M. Heinze contracting experience.

Nunber 1980
MR. DUNCAN first explained that the AOSCC is located in the

Department of Admnistration for admnistrative purposes only.
"We provide adm nistrative support, but we do nothing nore than

that with AOGCC, " he said. The AOGCC conm ssioners are
appointed by the governor and confirned by the legislature, so
t he conmm ssi on IS i ndependent of t he Depar t ment of

Adm ni stration. The AOGCC follows the procurenent policy of the
State of Alaska and the regulations set out by the conm ssioner
of Adm nistration. However, the comm ssioner does not review
their requests for proposals or approve them in any way. "The
only time I'd becone involved in that process is if there was an
appeal of the process by one of the |osing bidders,” he said.
The appeal would cone to nme as comm ssioner of adm nistration to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 15, 2001



rul e upon. There was no protest or appeal in this case that |I'm
aware of, so | was not even aware of this consultant contract."

MR. DUNCAN then responded to three questions M. Heinze had
asked. He said it is inportant to use Alaska hires and
contractors; that the state, indeed, should set an exanple to
the greatest extent possible related to Al aska hire and use of
Al aska contractors; and no, the Departnent of Admnistration
does not have any |eadership role in Alaskanizing the state's
gas devel opnent worK. The governor has appointed a gas sub-
cabinet, and the conm ssioner of admnistration does not serve
on it and does not have a direct role in the gas devel opnent
wor K.

Nunber 1766

CHAIR COGHI LL asked M. Heinze if he had appeal ed the selection
process.

MR. HEINZE said he had sought and received sonme background
information on the decision, found a nunber of errors, and

called those to the attention of the procurenent officer. That
did not change the decision, he said. He decided at that point
not to appeal. He explained that his concern in raising the

guestion is not to change that decision "but that the state has
put itself in a very bad position to influence very big
deci sions."

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked if a npotion was in order.

CHAIR COGHI LL said that was not necessary, but reconmended to
the commttee that it forward its approval of the conm ssioner's
appointnment to the full body. He suggested forwarding severa
appoi ntnments, including M. Duncan's, on one piece of paper.
[ CONFI RVATI ON' ADVANCED. ]

Al aska Public O fices Conmm ssion

Nunmber 1528

MARK HANDLEY, Appointee, Alaska Public Ofices Conm ssion
(APQOC), cane forward to testify. He said one of his goals, as a
comm ssioner is to try to nmake the APOC process |ess
intimdating and less difficult for candidates and contributors
while at the sane tine enforcing the |aw even-handedly and
firmy.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 15, 2001



CHAIR COGHI LL asked if he anticipated any nmmjor policy changes
for APOC in the next two years.

MR. HANDLEY said he did not. APCC just hired a new executive
director, and the selection of Brooke Mles is a reflection of
the comm ssion's view that it needs to hold the course and build
on what it has done. APQOC needs to see how the new regul ations
work and whether they create any unanticipated problens for
candi dates and nenbers of the public and maybe do sone fine-
t uni ng.

CHAIR COGHI LL observed that an interesting issue arose in the
|l ast election with M. Lindauer [a gubernatorial candidate].
There were sone unfortunate tinetable issues, APOCC was right in
the mddle of that, and, unfortunately, the outconme of the
el ection was significantly affected, he said. "Wuld you do
anything differently?" he asked. "Are there any policy changes
needed because of that?"

MR. HANDLEY explained that he had not been a nenber of the
comm ssion at that tinme, but as a nenber of the public follow ng
the unfolding scenario, his inpression was that the comm ssion

"didn't exactly cover itself with glory." He said he thinks the
comm ssion was caught by surprise by an wunusual set of
ci rcunst ances. Most people can't finance a canpaign out of

their own pockets, so they are reporting and things conme to
light a lot earlier than they do when soneone asserts that he or
she is going to be financing the canpaign out of pocket.
There's not a lot that the APOC statutes and regul ations give
the comm ssion as far as tools to deal with that, he said. "
think the comm ssion, nyself included, would be hesitant to nmake
any changes without direction from the legislature,” he stated.
If the legislature is concerned, one suggestion mght be to have
some kind of increased reporting requirenents for individuals
who are going to contribute nore than a certain anount to their
own canpai gns. That additi onal reporting mght include
di sclosure of their tax returns or of sources of incone. That
woul d give an opposing candidate the opportunity to press the
issue if he or she thought those funds were being channeled in
from illegal sources. But he does not think the present
statutes give APOC the authority to do that.

CHAIR COGH LL noted that the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee mght have to deal with that issue. He al so observed
that the committee was losing its quorum due to conflicting
commtnments, but that he intended to continue the hearing and
pass the record on to the nmenbers. [ CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED]

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 15, 2001



Human Ri ghts Conm ssi on

Nunber 1111

JUDGE ROY MADSEN, of Kodiak, testified by teleconference as
appoi ntee to the Human Ri ght Conm ssion. Judge Madsen expl ai ned
that he retired from the Superior Court bench in 1990 and has

since been involved in comunity activities. One of those is
the multicultural forum in Kodiak and another was the Suprene
Court <conmittee concerning fairness and access. A friend

suggested that there was a position available on the Hunman
Rights Commission and asked if he wuld be interested in

serving. He then received a call from the governor's office,
and the Human Ri ghts conm ssion "sounded |ike sonething that fit
in with in with the kind of things that |1've been involved in
since ny retirenment,” he said. He was struck by the

professionalism of the conmmssion staff and the |ongevity of
their service, and by the professionalism of the board. He has
had one case assigned to himfor review, and he | ooks forward to
further work with the conm ssion

CHAIR COGHI LL noted that the term of the appointnent runs
t hrough January 31, 2003. He asked Judge Madsen if he had
encountered any surprises as he began to look at the duties of
t he conm ssi on.

JUDGE MADSEN didn't think there had been any surprises.

CHAI R COGHI LL noted that the job involves handling a great deal
of sensitive information. He asked for nore information about
Judge Madsen's recent activities.

JUDGE MADSEN described the inception of a nmulticultural forumin
Kodi ak three years ago. He explained that there are many ethnic

groups in Kodiak including Filipino, Kor ean, Vi et nanese,
Laotian, African-Anerican, Jamai can, Sanpan, and Hi spanic people
from several di fferent countries. The forum includes

representatives of the groups and sponsors different activities
including a multi-cultural celebration of the Fourth of July,
several ethnic dance groups, and food festivals. Currently, the
forumis staging a benefit for Salvadorian earthquake victins.

CHAIR COGH LL conmended the celebration of diversity while
mai ntai ning community unity. He asked what Judge Madsen thought
about the tineliness of decisions by the Human Rights
Comm ssion. "Are we doing well there?" he asked.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 15, 2001



JUDGE MADSEN said there had been problens in the past but he
thinks those problens have been addressed and that the
commi ssion intends to keep on top in the future.

CHAIR COGHI LL said he was going to pass on to the full body a
recommendation for Judge Madsen's confirmation. [ CONFI R(VATI ON
ADVANCED]

ADJ OQURNVENT

Nunber 0222

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 9:43
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 15, 2001



